
April 18, 2016 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, April 18, 2016, at 7:30 p.m. 
at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 17602. The 
meeting was called to order by Mr. John Blowers, Chairman and was followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Blowers, supervisors present were: Mr. Dave Buckwalter,  
Mr. Glenn Eberly, and Mr. Corey Meyer.  Mr. Ethan Demme was absent.  Also present was Mr. 
Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager. 
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
 
Chief John Bowman, East Lampeter Township Police Department 
Officer Ryan Heistand & family, East Lampeter Township Police Department 
Sgt. Jeffrey Nikolaus & family, East Lampeter Township Police Department 
Brad Mowbray, 1853 William Penn Way, representing High 
Brian Spray, Rettew Associates 
Mark Stanley, representing High and H & F Tire 
Fred Clark, 112 Witmer Road, representing Clark 
Sallie McMinn, Lancaster, representing Lincoln Properties 
Henry Trabal, representing Ames Reese 
Barry Fitzgerald Sr., 1834 Lincoln Highway East, Lancaster, PA, representing H & F Tire 
Brett Fitzgerald, 1834 Lincoln Highway East, Lancaster, PA, representing H & F Tire 
Barry Fitzgerald Jr., 310 Laurel Oak Lane, representing H & F Tire and F3 Holdings 
Philip Pace, 2050 Old Philadelphia Pike, representing Tree House Foods 
 
Minutes of the April 4, 2016 Regular Meeting 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of the 
April 4, 2016 regular meeting as prepared.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Meyer to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the 
minutes as presented.  Mr. Buckwalter seconded the motion and the motion was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Bills: 
 
Chairman Blowers indicated that bills to be paid from various funds in the amount of $209,006.49 
were presented for payment. Chairman Blowers discussed some of the larger items included in 
the amount was a payment in the amount of $4,000.00 to LEMSA for 2016 Township 
contribution, a payment in the amount of $23,700.00 to New Holland Auto Group for a budgeted 
police vehicle purchase, and a payment in the amount of $5,760.00 to West Lampeter Township 
for shared cost of the Stormwater Management Coordinator for the 1st quarter of 2016. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Buckwalter and seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $209,006.49.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 



Swearing in of New Police Officers 
 
Chief Bowman introduced Mr. Ryan Heistand is 25 years old and a 2014 graduate of Williamsburg 
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Criminal Justice.  He stated that he completed his police 
academy training in July 2015 at Harrisburg Area Community College.  He will be assigned field 
training on Platoon #1 with Sgt. Shrom.   
 
Chairman Blowers swore in Officer Ryan Heistand to the East Lampeter Township Police 
Department. 
 
Police Department Rank Promotion – Chief Bowman 
 
Chief Bowman announced that Officer Jeffrey Nikolaus will be promoted to Sergeant effective 
April 24, 2016.  He stated that he is a 17 year veteran as a patrol officer in 1998.  He stated that he 
is a 1996 graduate of Shippensburg University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Criminal Justice.  He 
was assigned as a Detective to the Lancaster County Drug Task Force from April 2003 to March 
2004 and from January 2005 to December 2005.  He stated that he has completed numerous 
trainings on drug investigations and is certified as a bike patrol officer.  He stated that he received a 
Letter of Commendation in January 2006 for work with the County Drug Task Force.  He stated 
that Sgt. Nikolaus completed the rigorous promotion process and has the ability to lead a platoon 
of officers and to serve as an excellent first line supervisor.  He stated that he will be placed in 
charge of Platoon #3. He presented Sgt. Nikolaus with a plaque. 
 
Old Business 
 
None. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Tanger Outlets Conditional Use Decision Modification: 311 S.K. Tanger Blvd. 
 
Chairman Blowers stated that a Conditional Use Hearing was held at 4 pm so no action is needed 
on this agenda item.   
 

b. High Associates Apartments Land Development Plan #16-02: 355 Pitney Road 
 

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this project.  Mr. Brad Mowbray was present. 
 
Mr. Mowbray, Senior Vice President/Managing Director of the Residential Division of High 
Associates, is representing High Properties.  He introduced Mr. Brian Spray of Rettew 
Associates and Mr. Mark Stanley.  Mr. Mowbray gave a quick overview of the project stating 
that it will be an 83 unit residential 4 story building at 355 Pitney Road. He stated that the 
existing farmhouse will remain and will be used as a rental leaving 82 units in the L-shaped 
building with 23 garages on the ground floor.  He stated that it is on a 10 acre parcel but only 
half the parcel is useable space due to the Stauffer Run floodplain.  He stated that they are 
proposing connectivity along Pitney Road out to Greenfield Road and connectivity to the 



Greenfield Corporate Center.  He stated they have received the David Miller Associates review 
letter, NPDES approval, and recommended approval conditioned upon the adoption of the new 
zoning ordinance from the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Brian Spray, Rettew Associates, spoke about stormwater control in the floodplain.  He stated 
that they are proposing a little work in the floodplain by doing riparian buffer plantings.  He 
stated that the primary stormwater control will be small, low profile basins throughout the site.  
He reviewed the wavier and modifications requested in the David Miller Associates letter 
including waiver #1 a waiver of the preliminary plan, waiver #2 a waiver of plan scale for the 
preliminary plan, waiver #3 a waiver of plan scale for the final plan, waiver #4 a partial waiver 
of road widening, waiver #5 a partial waiver of curbing, waiver #6 a partial waiver of sidewalks 
and waiver #7 a waiver of stormwater volume controls.  The Board, Mr. Hutchison,  
Mr. Mowbray and Mr. Spray discussed road widening issues.  Mr. Hutchison recommended to 
the Board that a condition be placed for widening and curbing from Greenfield Road to the site.  
The Board, Mr. Spray, and Mr. Stanley also discussed the open space area and the bridge over 
Stauffer Run.  The Board discussed options for this agenda item.  Mr. Spray continued to review 
the David Miller letter by stating that wavier #7 has been fulfilled by the receiving of the NPDES 
approval.  He then reviewed the Zoning, Subdivision and Land Development, and Stormwater 
Management items from the David Miller letter.  He stated that they are not complying the 
Planning Commission recommendation of a midblock crosswalk. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to conditionally approve the High Apartments Land 
Development Plan #16-02 for 355 Pitney Road granting the 6 waiver requests in the David 
Miller letter dated April 4, 2016 and subject to the review comments of the Township engineer 
and Lancaster County Planning Commission and the adoption of the Draft 2016 Zoning 
Ordinance except not requiring the midblock crossing recommended by the County Planning 
Commission with the addition that the request for the pedestrian crossing at Stauffer Run not be 
required with the condition of providing frontage improvements from the site to Greenfield Road 
and if that cannot be achieved the applicant must come back before the Board.  Mr. Meyer 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

c. Clark Equipment Land Development Plan #16-06: 2201 Old Philadelphia Pike 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this project.  Mr. Fred Clark was present. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that they have met all the Township engineer’s requirement.  He stated that the 
only thing they are asking is the curbing along Route 340 that they can have the plan approved to 
put the parking lot in because it will take some time to get PennDOT approval.  He stated that 
they already agreed to put the curbing in.  He stated that they have to move a fire hydrant and a 
pole but are waiting on PennDOT’s approval.  He stated that they agree with all the Township 
engineer’s comments except for the comment about the sidewalk being short.   
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to conditionally approve the Clark Equipment Land Development 
Plan #16-06 for 2201 Old Philadelphia Pike subject to the David Miller letter.  Mr. Meyer 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 



d. Request for Land Development Planning Waiver – Ames Reese: 2575 Old Philadelphia 
Pike 

 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this project.  Mr. Henry Trabal was present. 
 
Mr. Trabal, Vice President, stated that they are requesting to put a 40 foot storage container for 
metal tools and dies on their property because they space is tight in their plant.  He stated that it 
will be insulated, have climate control and be painted to match the existing building.  He stated 
that they are proposing a temporary placement for 24 months at which time they should be ready 
to move forward with an expansion of the plant.   
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to conditionally approve the request for Land Development 
Planning Waiver for Ames Reese at 2575 Old Philadelphia Pike as presented by the letter from 
Ames Reese for temporary placement for 24 months.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was 
passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

e. Request for Land Development Planning Waiver – Tree House Foods (ConAgra): 2060 
Old Philadelphia Pike 

 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this project.  Mr. Philip Pace was present. 
 
Mr. Pace, on behalf of Tree House Foods, is requesting to place two temporary trailers for use 
for classroom and meeting space associated with a capital investment that is being made in the 
property along with a massive training effort.   
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to conditionally approve the request for Land Development Planning 
Waiver for Tree House Foods (ConAgra) at 2060 Old Philadelphia Pike for temporary placement 
until December 31, 2016.  Mr. Buckwalter seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
Other Business: 
 

a. Bids for 2016 In Place Paving 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township only received one bid from Pennsy Supply Inc. in the 
amount of $229,491.72.  He stated that staff reviewed the bid and recommends granting the 
contract to Pennsy Supply. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve the bid for 2016 In Place Paving for Pennsy Supply 
Inc. in the amount of $229,491.72.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

b. Technical Corrective Amendment re: Floodplain Regulation 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that one of the dates in the adopted ordinance was incorrect so this 
technical amendment is to correct that error. 



 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve the Technical Corrective Amendment for the 
Floodplain Regulation Ordinance.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Ordinance No. 322 
 

c. Resolution re: PADOT Policy and Procedure for Consultant Selection 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that the resolution is for the Route 30 Streetscape relining effort.  He 
explained that PADOT is planning to resurface Route 30 from the bypass that goes over Route 
462 East to Route 896 in 2017.  He stated that the Township’s goal is to have the lines repainted 
according to the Route 30 Streetscape Plan.  He stated that in order to do that according to 
PADOT’s rules the Township has to follow a selection procedure to select which firm would do 
the design work for the Township.  He stated that if the Board adopts this policy they would be 
adopting the required PADOT policy and the work can be incorporated into the planned 
resurfacing project.  Chairman Blowers commented on the Tanger project.  Mr. Hutchison stated 
that the Township’s goal is to incorporate that into the project.   
 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to approve the resolution regarding PADOT Policy and 
Procedure for Consultant Selection.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2016-07 
 

d. Discussion re: Priority Projects for Route 30 Streetscape Plan Implementation 
 
Chairman Blowers stated that they are working on the process of establishing a prioritization 
schedule for projects related to the Route 30 Streetscape Implementation Plan.  He stated the 
Township has approximately $174 million worth of projects and the need to have funding in 
place to do the projects.   
 
Mr. Hutchison explained that there are 5 projects that Township staff recommends focusing 
priority on.  He stated they include the redevelopment of the Lancaster Host Property, the 
creation and operation of an “Improvement District” for the corridor, the reconfiguration of the 
Route 30/Route 462 area between Oakview Road and Strasburg Pike, the green stormwater 
infrastructure demonstration project with a 12 foot trail linking Willowdale Drive and the 
western driveway entrance to Rockvale Square and the repainting of the lane markings and 
crosswalks throughout the corridor as recommended in the plan. 
 
Mr. Meyer commented that he would like to see the redevelopment of the old WAWA building 
at Route 896.  Chairman Blowers commented that the Township will need to have consultants to 
identify funding sources for the projects.  Mr. Hutchison stated that private development has 
helped by implementing the plan into portions of their projects including Dutch Wonderland, 
Tanger and Fairfield Inn.  Mr. Blowers commented that the reconfiguration of the Route 
30/Route 462 area between Oakview Road and Strasburg Pike is a necessity due to significant 
traffic accidents. 
 



 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Mr. Mark Stanley, representing H & F Tire on Lincoln Highway East expressed concern 
regarding the proposed new zoning ordinance and the Mixed Use Zone and its effect on the 
business. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Meyer to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, May 2, 2016 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ralph Hutchison 










































